
Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 
Wednesday, November 13, 2019 

7:00 PM 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

PRESENTATION 

• Proclamation in honor of United Against Hate 

• Halloween House Decorating Contest Winners 

• Annual Employee Recognition 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  

Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. Comments 
on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the October 23, 2019 Regular Meeting. 

2. Motion to Accept the Report of Checks Paid for October 2019. 

3. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Appointing Laura Walsh to the Board of Trustees of the San Mateo 
County Mosquito and Vector Control District. 

4. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving Third Amendment to the Bulk Cable Television Services 
Agreement with Comcast to Extend the Agreement for Five Years. 

NEW BUSINESS 

5. REPUBLIC SERVICES WASTE HAULING FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AMENDMENT  

Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving First Amendment to Allied Waste Services of 
North American, LLC (DBA Republic Services of Daly City) Franchise Agreement. 

REPORTS 

Mayor/City Council       
City Manager          

ADJOURNMENT 

 



Page 2 of 2 
 

The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review at the Colma Town Hall, 1198 El 
Camino Real, Colma, CA during normal business hours (Mon – Fri 8am-5pm). Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-mail 
should call Caitlin Corley at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov.  

Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to view 
the agenda, should direct such a request to Pak Lin, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or pak.lin@colma.ca.gov. Please allow 
two business days for your request to be processed. 
 

mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:pak.lin@colma.ca.gov


Minutes – Regular Meeting 10.23.19 Page 1 of 3 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Town Hall Council Chamber, 1198 El Camino Real 

Colma, CA 94014 
Wednesday, October 23, 2019 

6:00 PM – CLOSED SESSION 
7:00 PM – REGULAR SESSION 

CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 

1. In Closed Session Under Government Code § 54956.9(d)(2), CONFERENCE WITH
LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION

Number of Cases: 1 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Joanne F. del Rosario called the meeting to order at 7:07 p.m.   

Council Present – Mayor Joanne F. del Rosario, Vice Mayor John Irish Goodwin, Council 
Members Diana Colvin, Helen Fisicaro and Raquel Gonzalez were all present.  

Staff Present – City Manager Brian Dossey, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, Chief of Police 
Kirk Stratton, Director of Public Works Brad Donohue, Administrative Services Director Pak 
Lin, City Planner Michael Laughlin, City Clerk Caitlin Corley, Associate Engineer Abdulkader 
Hashem and Human Resources Manager Letty Juarez were in attendance.  

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

The Mayor announced that no action was taken at tonight’s closed session. 

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor del Rosario asked if there were any changes to the agenda; none were requested. 
The Mayor asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action: Council Member Gonzalez moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded 
by Council Member Colvin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor ✓

John Irish Goodwin ✓

Diana Colvin ✓

Helen Fisicaro ✓

Raquel Gonzalez ✓

5 0 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mayor del Rosario opened the public comment period at 7:02 p.m. and seeing no one come 
forward to speak, she closed the public comment period. 

Item #1



 

Minutes – Regular Meeting 10.23.19   Page 2 of 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the October 9, 2019 Regular Meeting. 

3. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Repealing Section 5.03.390 and Adding Chapter 5.20 to the 
Town of Colma Municipal Code, Imposing Regulations on Mobile Stores and Determining 
Such Action to be Categorically Exempt from Environmental Review Pursuant to CEQA 
Guidelines 15378(a) and 15061(b)(3) (second reading). 

Action: Council Member Colvin moved to approve the Consent Calendar items #2 and #3; 
the motion was seconded by Council Member Gonzalez and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor ✓     

John Irish Goodwin ✓     

Diana Colvin ✓     

Helen Fisicaro ✓     

Raquel Gonzalez ✓     

 5 0    

PUBLIC HEARING 

4. ADDITIONS AND AMENDMENT TO THE COLMA PARKING CODE 

Public Works Director Brad Donohue presented the staff report. Mayor del Rosario opened 
the public hearing at 7:09 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the 
public heading. Council discussion followed. 

Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution Amending Sections 3.4, 5.3, 
and 5.6 of the Colma Parking Code, Relating to the Stopping, Standing or Parking of 
Vehicles within the Town of Colma; the motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Goodwin and 
carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor ✓     

John Irish Goodwin ✓     

Diana Colvin ✓     

Helen Fisicaro ✓     

Raquel Gonzalez ✓     

 5 0    

STUDY SESSION 

5. EL CAMINO BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENT PLAN ROLLOUT 

Director of Public Works Brad Donohue presented the staff report. Mayor del Rosario 
opened the public hearing at 7:29 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she 
closed the public comment period. Council discussion followed. 

This item was for discussion only; no action was taken.  



 

Minutes – Regular Meeting 10.23.19   Page 3 of 3 

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

The next Regular Council Meeting will be on Wednesday, November 13, 2019 at 7:00pm at 
Town Hall.  

REPORTS 

Helen Fisicaro 
 Daly City Food Pantry Take My Hand Dinner, 10/18/19 
 
John Goodwin 
 Daly City Food Pantry Take My Hand Dinner, 10/18/19  

 
City Manager Brian Dossey gave a report on the following topics: 

▪ C/CAG decided not to form a subregion, so Colma will continue to receive it’s own 
housing allocation, rather than negotiate along with other San Mateo County 
jurisdictions.  

▪ There will be a Special Meeting on November 8, 2019 at 11:30 am at Veterans Village.  

ADJOURNMENT  

▪ Mayor del Rosario adjourned the meeting at 7:46 p.m. in memory of Richard Brewer, 
Colma Resident; Adela Martinez, aunt of Council Member Fisicaro; and Aaron Vang, 
nephew of Administrative Technician Lia Vang. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
Caitlin Corley 
City Clerk 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Item #2























































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



SMC Mosquito and Vector Control District Trustee  Page 1 of 2 
November 13, 2019 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

VIA: Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: November 13, 2019 

SUBJECT: Mosquito and Vector Control District Board of Trustee Appointment 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that City Council adopt the following: 

RESOLUTION APPOINTING LAURA WALSH TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE SAN 
MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Staff recommends the City Council appoint Laura Walsh to the San Mateo County Mosquito and 
Vector Control Board of Trustees.  Staff conducted a recruitment process and found Ms. Walsh 
to be qualified to serve on the Board of Trustees. She meets all the requirements of the District, 
and is committed to serving the Town of Colma. 

If City Council appoints Laura Walsh, staff will forward the attached letter (attachment B) to the 
San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District, informing the District of Ms. Walsh’s 
appointment.   

If appointed, Ms. Walsh will serve a two year term, from the first Monday in January 2020 to 
the first Monday in January 2022 or until a successor has been appointed. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

BACKGROUND 

Qualifications 

The District is governed by a 21-member Board of Trustees, each of whom is a resident of a 
city in the District and is appointed for either a two or four year term at the discretion of his or 
her respective City Council.  The candidate must be a resident of the appointing city, at least 21 
years old, and interested in learning what the District does and in sharing that information. 
Experience or specialized knowledge in biology or any other health-related sciences is not 
required. 

Item #3



SMC Mosquito and Vector Control District Trustee  Page 2 of 2 
November 13, 2019 

Under California Health & Safety Code section 2024, the term of office for a member of the 
board of trustees shall be for a term of two or four years, at the discretion of the appointing 
authority, commencing at noon on the first Monday in January.   
 
Recruitment  

Staff posted the vacancy on the Town website, social media pages and in the October issue of 
LiveWire. Staff received one application and had a phone conversation to discuss the position 
and responsibilities with the applicant on October 25, 2019. Based on experience, qualifications, 
and the ability and interest to serve, staff recommends Laura Walsh be appointed to the Board 
of Trustees as the Town representative. 
 
Ms. Walsh has indicated that she will be able attend the monthly meetings and present 
important district happenings and information at City Council Meetings quarterly. She is looking 
forward to serving the community. 
 
History 

Joe Silva is the Town’s current representative on the board; his term expires at the end of 
2019. He did not apply for reappointment. 

Prior to Mr. Silva’s tenure, resident Carrie Slaughter served as the Board representative for 
Colma from January 2016 to November 2016, and resident Louis Gotelli served as the Board 
representative for Colma from January 2014-January 2016. Prior to Mr. Gotelli’s appointment, 
Colma’s seat on the Board went unfilled due to lack of interest.  The Town has never appointed 
a Council Member because the Board Meetings, held on the second Wednesday of the month, 
conflict with City Council Meetings. 

Alternatives 

The City Council could choose not to adopt the resolution appointing Laura Walsh to the Board 
of Trustees of the Mosquito and Vector Control Abatement District. However, this would leave 
the Town unrepresented on an important regional board when Mr. Silva’s term expires at the 
end of this year.  

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council adopt the resolution to appoint Laura Walsh to the San 
Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District Board of Trustees.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Resolution 
B. Appointment Letter to SMCMVCD 
C. Candidate application 



- 

Res. 2019 -   , SMC Mosquito Abatement District Trustee Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019- 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPOINTING LAURA WALSH TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background

(a) The San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District (District) is an independent, 
property-tax-funded district within San Mateo County that provides the following services to 
each of its member cities and their residents: mosquito surveillance and control, yellow jacket 
nest removal, insect identification, and vector-borne disease surveys. 

(b) The District is governed by a 21 member Board of Trustees, each of whom is a resident 
of a city in the District and is appointed for either a two or four year term at the discretion of 
his or her respective City Council.  The candidate must be a resident of the appointing city, at 
least 21 years old, and interested in learning what the District does and in sharing that 
information.  Experience or specialized knowledge in biology or any other health-related 
sciences is not required. 

(c) Under California Health & Safety Code section 2024, the term of office for a member of 
the board of trustees shall be for a term of two or four years, at the discretion of the appointing 
authority, commencing at noon on the first Monday in January.  Any person appointed to fill a 
vacant office shall fill the balance of the unexpired term. 

(d) Joe Silva is the Town’s current representative on the board; his term expires at the end 
of 2019. Staff posted the upcoming vacancy on the Town’s website, social media pages, and in 
the October issue of LiveWire.  Staff received one application and had a phone conversation to 
discuss the position and responsibilities with the applicant on October 25, 2019. 

(e) Based on experience, qualifications, and the ability and interest to serve, staff 
recommends Laura Walsh be appointed to the Board of Trustees as the Town representative. 

2. Order

(a) The City Council appoints Laura Walsh as trustee to the San Mateo County Mosquito and 
Vector Control District from first Monday in January 2020 to the first Monday in January 2022 or 
until a successor has been appointed. 

(b) Ms. Walsh shall represent the interests of the public as a whole and not solely the 
interests of the Colma City Council. 

/// 

/// 

Attachment A



- 

Res. 2019 -   , SMC Mosquito Abatement District Trustee Page 2 of 2 

Certification of Adoption 
 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2019-   was duly adopted at our regular meeting of 
the City Council of the Town of Colma held on November 13, 2019, by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor      

John Irish Goodwin      

Diana Colvin       

Helen Fisicaro      

Raquel Gonzalez      

Voting Tally      

 
 
Dated               
       Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
 
       Attest:       
        Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 



TOWN OF COLMA 
1198 El Camino Real • Colma, California • 94014-3212 

Tel 650.997.8300 • Fax 650.997.8308 

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 

John Irish Goodwin, Vice Mayor 

Diana Colvin, Council Member • Helen Fisicaro, Council Member • Raquel P. Gonzalez, Council Member 

Brian Dossey, City Manager 

November 14, 2019 

Dr. Chindi Peavey, District Manager 
San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District 
1351 Rollins Road 
Burlingame, CA 94010 

Dear Dr. Peavey: 

Please accept this letter confirming the appointment of Laura Walsh to the Board of 
Trustees for the San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District.  Ms. Walsh’s 
term as the Town of Colma’s board representative will be from the first Monday in 
January 2020 to the first Monday in January 2022. The resolution approving this 
appointment is attached.  

If you have any questions or need additional information please do not hesitate to 
contact City Clerk Caitlin Corley at 650.997.8311 or ccorley@colma.ca.gov. 

Sincerely, 

Joanne F. del Rosario 
Mayor, Town of Colma 

Attachment B

mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



SMCMVCD Board of Trustee Application 

Online Submittal: Fri 10/18/2019 2:27 PM 

Name 

Laura Walsh

Address 

1319 Mission Rd 
South San Francisco, CA 94080-1215 
Map It

Home Phone 

(650) 992-3069

Cell Phone

(415) 200-9660

Email

tomnlaw40@yahoo.com

How many years have you lived in Colma? 

15

Are you a registered voter in Colma? 

Yes

Why are you seeking this appointment? 

I am seeking this appointment as I love to serve my community and I would like to have an active role with 
Mosquito abatement. The health of our residents is key and I thrive on learning new things and sharing my 
ideas.  

What qualifies you for this appointment? 

I am the former Co-President of the Medical Assistants Association. Past President of the music boosters club 
at E l Camino High School. I have held board positions on the PTA to include treasurer of Sunshine Gardens 
Elementary school and Alta Loma Middle School. I have also held the office of Secretary, Treasurer, and other 
positions in Jobs Daughters. Donation coordinator for Project Read of SSF CA. I have been involved with 
community service since I was in Brownies  

Education 

Name and Location of School? 

City College of San Francisco

Dates attended? 

1980- 2006 on and off

Degree received? 

AS Medical Assisting

Name and Location of School?

Attachment C

http://maps.google.com/maps?q=1319+Mission+Rd+South+San+Francisco%2C+CA+94080-1215
mailto:tomnlaw40@yahoo.com


  Mcateer High School  

Dates attended?  

  1978-1980  

Degree received?  

  High School Diploma  

Work Experience 

Employer  

  San Mateo Rheumatology  

Position  

  Medical Assistant  

Dates Employed  

  4/11-present  

Employer  

  Drs Lakowsky and Batlin  

Position  

  Medical Assistant  

Dates Employed  

  7/09-4/11  

Signature  

  X 
 

 
 



Staff Report - Third Amendment to Comcast Amendment  Page 1 of 2 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Brian Dossey, City Manager 

Christopher J. Diaz, City Attorney 

MEETING DATE: November 13, 2019 

SUBJECT: Third Amendment to Comcast Agreement 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Council adopt the following: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE BULK CABLE 
TELEVISION SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH COMCAST TO EXTEND THE 
AGREEMENT FOR FIVE YEARS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed resolution would authorize the Mayor to execute the third amendment to the 
existing contract with Comcast Corporation to extend the agreement for five additional years 
and allow for the automatic renewal of the agreement for one-year periods thereafter.  During 
the renewal period, either party could choose not to renew the agreement with a minimum 270-
day notice. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The Town currently pays about $190,000 per year for 499 households and Town facility cable 
services. As an incentive to renew the agreement early Comcast agreed to reduce the monthly 
rate saving the Town approximately $5,000 annually.     

ANALYSIS 

In 2002, the Town contracted with TCI Cablevision, the predecessor to Comcast Corporation, to 
provide cable television services to all residents. The Comcast contract was renewed every 
three to five years after 2002.  

A new five-year bulk services agreement was executed with Comcast in 2015. 

Item #4



Staff Report - Third Amendment to Comcast Amendment  Page 2 of 2 

In December 2017 the bulk services agreement was amended; the amendment related to the 
calculation of Public, educational, and governmental access fees (PEG). 

In November 2018 the bulk services agreement was amended, adding the units from Veteran’s 
Village (66 units) and the B and C Street Homes (9 homes).  

The five-year agreement that was executed in 2015 is set to expire in 2020. Therefore, staff is 
recommending the extension of the bulk services agreement for an additional five years. 

 Council Adopted Values 

The recommendation is consistent with the Council value of responsibility because it will 
extend Comcast services for five additional years ensuring continued access to cable television. 

Sustainability Impact 

None. 

Alternatives 

The City Council could choose not to approve the amendment.  This alternative is not 
recommended since the agreement is intended to provide cable services to all within the Town.  

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council adopt the resolution. 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Resolution 
B. Third Amendment  



Res. 2019-__, Third Amendment Bulk Cable Television Services Agreement Page 1 of 4 
25977.00100\32495611.1  

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE BULK CABLE 
TELEVISION SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH COMCAST TO EXTEND THE 

AGREEMENT FOR FIVE YEARS 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background.

(a) In 1998, the Colma Recreation Advisory Committee, led by an outside, independent expert
in recreational and leisure services and comprised of residents and staff members of the Town, 
filed a report recommending that the Town develop a comprehensive recreational program which 
should meet the following goals, inter alia: 

(i) The Town should subsidize all new and existing recreation programs; 

(ii) Programs should be consistent and sustainable; 

(iii) There should be a variety of recreational programs which encompass the 
total needs of individuals, represent the demographic needs of the community, provide quality 
leisure experiences, and provide participants with exposure to positive images of diversity. 

(b) Since then, the City Council has endeavored to develop such a comprehensive recreational 
program and, in furtherance thereof, adopted Guidelines for Recreation and Leisure Programs, 
Events and Activities (Colma Administrative Code § 2.01.010 et seq.). The Guidelines encourage 
the development of programs that encompass the total needs of the individual, including 
education, culture, personal relaxation, and self-improvement (Colma Administrative Code § 
2.01.100) and provide for increased access for all citizens.  

(c) In 2002, prior to adopting Resolution 2002-15, the Council reviewed the following 
documentary evidence: Town of Colma Recreation Activities Committee, Colma Recreation 
Activities Guide, 1998; City and County of San Francisco, Recreation and Park Department 
Assessment Project, 1998; California Park and Recreation Society, Vision Insight Planning 
Strategic Plan, 1999; Canadian Parks/Recreation Association, Benefits of Parks and Recreation 
Catalogue, 1997 (web site: http://www.lin.ca/htdocs/catackn.htm); and found, among other 
facts, that: 

(i) Making cable television programs available to all residents of the Town of 
Colma provides a substantial public benefit because cable television offers so much informational, 
educational and recreational value to the viewer; 

(ii) Adopting a program wherein the Town shall pay for all residents to have 
access to and continued availability of cable television services is desirable in a free and 
democratic society where the people are the electorate because the citizenry becomes more 
informed, more up to date on current issues affecting the nation, region, and locality, and more 
ready to meet the responsibilities of being an informed electorate; and 

Attachment A



Res. 2019-__, Third Amendment Bulk Cable Television Services Agreement Page 2 of 4 
25977.00100\32495611.1  

(iii) Making cable television services available to all residents of the Town is 
consistent with the Policies set forth in the Recreation Program Guidelines contained at Colma 
Administrative Code § 2.01.100. 

(d) In 2002, after making these findings, the City Council adopted Resolution 2002-15, which 
approved a Bulk Services Agreement with TCI Cablevision, the predecessor to Comcast 
Corporation and authorized the Town to subsidize cable television programming for Town 
residents. 

(e) Since 2002, the contract has been renewed every three to five years.  

(f) In 2015, the Town entered into an amended and restated agreement with Comcast 
Corporation for five years.   

(g) In 2017, the Town entered into a First Amendment to eliminate the charge or remittance 
of any PEG fees pursuant to Section 5b for the Bulk Video Services. 

(h) In 2018, the Town entered into a Second Amendment to include additional units in the 
Town. 

(i) The current contract is set to expire in 2020 and Town staff is now recommending that 
the City Council extend the existing agreement for five additional years through the approval of 
a third amendment.  

2. Findings.   

The City Council finds that each of the following facts are true: 

(a) The California Department of Finance estimates the Town population at 1,512 residents. 

(b) Recreational, educational, and cultural opportunities for Colma residents are limited. The 
total amount of land dedicated for park purposes is 2.43 acres. This amounts to approximately 
1.5 acres of parkland per 1,000 residents. This is lower than the recommended target of 3.0 acres 
of parkland per 1,000 residents. Because of these limited recreational opportunities, the Town of 
Colma subsidizes recreational, educational and cultural opportunities for its citizens to increase 
accessibility for its residents. For example, the Town has sponsored and subsidized children’s 
summer camps, summer picnics, holiday parties, and cultural trips to museums.  

(c) Cable television programming provides significant informational, educational, cultural, 
civic, and recreational values to people. By subsidizing the distribution of cable television 
programming, the Town will bring these values to the entire community. 

(d) The informational and news value of cable television programming is well-established. 
Among the ongoing programming of cable television are (i) network channels, including CNN, C-
Span, C-Span 2, Fox, MSNBC, and CNBC, which report the news or offer informed commentary 
of current events 24 hours per day; (ii) local PEG channels covering the governmental and public 
affairs matters of importance to the Town; (iii) several local stations which each broadcast up-to-
date local news and weather for the region, the state and the nation; (iv) a court channel; and 



Res. 2019-__, Third Amendment Bulk Cable Television Services Agreement Page 3 of 4 
25977.00100\32495611.1  

(v) a weather channel. A wider penetration of news programming leads to a more informed and 
educated electorate and community. 

(e) Cable television offers a wealth of educational programs. Many channels focus solely on 
one theme, such as Animal Planet channel, History channel and Discovery channel. Some news 
channels, such as C-Span, offer significant educational content when not reporting news. Just as 
news of current events leads to a more informed and educated public, educational and history 
programs help the public better understand civic, national and international events and issues. 

(f) Self-improvement programming such as Food channel, Food Network, Discovery Health 
channel, and Home and Garden TV, also provide a benefit to the public. HGTV, for example, 
teaches people how to care for and improve their homes, which in turn preserves neighborhoods 
and maintains home values. 

(g) Studies have shown that the average American who reaches the age of 70 spends 
approximately 27.5 years involved in some form of recreation. The average person will attribute 
the relative happiness of their life to the quality of their leisure time. To obtain relative happiness 
and quality leisure time, participants must have a variety of activities from which to choose. 
Television, despite its sometimes seemingly trivial side, offers a leisurely respite from the stresses 
of modern urban living. 

(h) There is substantial evidence that the distribution of cable television services is a matter 
of great public importance and necessity. For example: 

(i) The legislature of the State of California of California has found that the 
supplying of cable television services on a universal basis to be a desirable goal and has provided 
in Government Code section 53066.2 that “a city … shall assure that access to cable services is 
not denied to any group of potential residential subscribers because of the income of the residents 
of the local area ….”; 

(ii) Similarly, the State Legislature found and declared, in the Digital 
Infrastructure and Video Competition Act (DIVCA), Public Utilities Code section 5810 that: “Video 
and cable services provide numerous benefits to all Californians including access to a variety of 
news, public information, education, and entertainment programming….”  and that the Legislature 
desired to promote “widespread access to the most technologically advanced cable and video 
services to all California communities in a non-discriminatory manner regardless of socioeconomic 
status”; 

(iii) In Loretto v. Teleprompter Manhattan CATV Corp (1982), the United States 
Supreme Court recognized that the penetration of the entire viewing area and citizenry with cable 
television services has “important educational and community aspects;" and 
 

(iv) The Attorney General of the State of California has opined, in 76 Ops. Cal. 
Atty. Gen. 118, that the distribution of cable television services involve an “essential” and 
important public service, and has labeled the provision of cable television to be a “necessary” 
service, akin to other public utilities. 



Res. 2019-__, Third Amendment Bulk Cable Television Services Agreement Page 4 of 4 
25977.00100\32495611.1  

(i) Continuing the Town’s program of subsidizing residents’ access to and continued 
availability of cable television services provides a substantial public benefit, as more particularly 
described in the foregoing findings. 

(j) Continuing the Town’s program of subsidizing residents’ access to and continued 
availability of cable television services is desirable in a free and democratic society where the 
people are the electorate in that the citizenry becomes more informed, more up to date on current 
issue affecting the nation, region, and locality, and more ready to meets the responsibilities of 
being an informed electorate. 

(k) Continuing the Town’s program of subsidizing residents’ access to and continued 
availability of cable television services is consistent with the Policies set forth in the Recreation 
Program Guidelines contained at Colma Administrative Code § 2.01.100. 

(l) The Town’s program of subsidizing residents’ access to and continued availability of cable 
television services should be expanded as appropriate to ensure all Town residents have access 
to the program’s benefits. 

3. Order. 

(a) The Mayor is authorized to execute the third amendment to the existing Bulk Cable 
Television Services Contract with Comcast Corporation for the purposes of extending the 
agreement for five additional years, with such technical amendments as may be deemed 
appropriate by the City Manager and the City Attorney. 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2019-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of said 
City Council held on November 13, 2019 by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor      

John Irish Goodwin      

Diana Colvin       

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez       

Helen Fisicaro      

Voting Tally      

 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
        Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 



THIRD AMENDMENT TO  
AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS THIRD AMENDMENT TO AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICES 
AGREEMENT (the "Amendment") is made and entered into this 14th  day of November, 2019 
(the “Effective Date”) by and between Comcast of California IX, Inc. (the "Company") and 
Town of Colma (the "Town ") who owns or has control over certain real property located Colma, 
California 94014 (the “Premises”).  The Owner and the Company are parties to that certain 
Amended and Restated Bulk Video Services Agreement dated June 1, 2015 (the “Agreement”).  
Capitalized terms used herein without definition shall have the meanings assigned to them in the 
Agreement.   

The parties agree to amend the Agreement as follows: 

1. The term of the Agreement is hereby extended for an additional 5 years (the “Initial Renewal
Period”) commencing on the Effective Date.  Thereafter, the Agreement shall automatically
renew for additional one (1) year periods (each, an “Additional Renewal Period” and together
with the Initial Renewal Period, the “Renewal Term”) unless either party shall provide the
other with a minimum 270 days’ notice of its intention not to renew of the then current term.

2. Section 5. Fees and Charges for Bulk Services subsection (b) is hereby deleted in their entirety
and replaced by the following:

b) Effective November 14, 2019, the Town shall pay the Company a monthly fee for Bulk
Video Service equal to $25.50 per unit and a broadcast TV fee of $4.50 per unit for a total 
“monthly per unit service fee” of $30.00, plus all applicable government fees and taxes, 
except for franchise fees, according to the Activation Schedule below.  For the 499 dwelling 
units and four (4) public buildings, the initial total monthly fee will be $14,970.00 plus all 
applicable government fees and taxes. The monthly per unit service fee referenced above 
does not include any fees which may be billed directly to RDU residents for Additional 
Services (defined in Section 5(e) below) or any fees which may be billed directly to the 
Town for additional equipment or other technical services at the public buildings.  The 
monthly per unit service fee may be increased by the Company once annually upon thirty 
(30) days written notice and shall not exceed 3% and further provided that the rate increase 
shall not be greater than the service rate increases applicable to residential subscribers in 
Daly City, California for Digital Starter or equivalent service. 

3. Except as specifically modified hereby, the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect in
accordance with its terms.

4. Each party represents to the other that the person signing on its behalf has the legal right and
authority to execute, enter into and bind such party to the commitments and obligations set
forth herein.

Attachment B



[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON THE NEXT PAGE.] 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Amendment to be signed, sealed 
and delivered as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 
TOWN  
 
Town of Colma 
 
 
By:    
Name:  
Title:   Mayor 
 
 
 
COMPANY 
 
Comcast of California IX, Inc.  
 
 
By:    
Name: Kristeen Cominiello 
Title:   Regional Vice President, Sales and Marketing  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



Staff Report First Amendment to Waste Hauling Franchise Agreement  Page 1 of 3 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Brad Donohue, Direct of Public Works 

Christopher J. Diaz, City Attorney 

VIA: Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: November 13, 2019 

SUBJECT: Republic Services Waste Hauling Franchise Agreement Amendment 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following Resolution:  

RESOLUTION APPROVING FIRST AMENDMENT TO ALLIED WASTE SERVICES OF NORTH 
AMERICA, LLC (DBA REPUBLIC SERVICES OF DALY CITY) FRANCHISE AGREEMENT   

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed amendment would allow Republic Services to surcharge Colma businesses that 
habitually block or prevent Republic Services from completing their scheduled pick up services. 
Per the Franchise Agreement (“Agreement”) that was executed with Allied Waste Services, 
(dba, Republic Services Inc.) per section 12.19 of the Agreement, “This Agreement may be 
amended or modified only by written agreement duly authorized by Contractor and the Town 
and executed by their authorized representatives.”   

Staff is recommending that the City Council review and approve the First Amendment to the 
Franchise Agreement to allow Republic Services to surcharge Colma Business Customers that 
habitually block or prevent the waste hauler from conducting their scheduled pickups. 

BACKGROUND 

In April of 2016 the Town of Colma entered into a franchise agreement with Allied Waste 
Services of North America, LLC, doing business as Republic Services, Inc. to collect garbage, 
recyclable materials, food waste and yard trimmings from all residential and commercial 
properties in Colma.  

Per Section 3.12.6 of the Agreement it states the following “In all events of non-
collection, Contractor shall leave the hard (card stock) copy of the Non-Collection Notice at the 
premises by affixing it to the Container and shall retain one copy.  Contractor shall report all 
events of non-collection to Town on a weekly basis.”  Town Staff has on a weekly basis 
received a summary of the prior week’s Non Collection Notices (NCN’s). In our meetings with 
the Hauler we address this issue and ask if the Hauler is communicating with the business 

Item #5



Staff Report First Amendment to Waste Hauling Franchise Agreement   Page 2 of 3 

owner to correct the NCN’s. With many of the business’s corrections were made and at times 
pick up schedules where rearranged to make it work for the customer, but in a few instances, 
some businesses would make commitments to correct and then fall back and for whatever 
reason fail at their commitment to correct the issues regarding the NCN.    

The proposed amendment to the Agreement still requires the Hauler to exercise communication 
with the business owner and work towards a viable solution to correct the issues.  The Hauler 
would be required to notify the business owner a minimum of three (3) times prior to levying a 
surcharge on the business for excessive NCN’s. 

ANALYSIS 

If the proposed amendment is approved a new section to the Franchise Agreement 
would read as follows:  

3.12.10 Surcharge for Inaccessible Containers 

 

A. Initial Notices.  Commercial Customers shall ensure that 

Contractor has access to the Container(s) serving such Customer for 

Collection on the Collection date.  In the event a Commercial Customer 

has not allowed Contractor access to their Solid Waste, Organic Waste or 

Recycling Container for Collection due to the Collection area being 

blocked by Customer or other similar reason, the Contractor shall provide 

notice to such Customer.  Such notice shall explain the reason for the 

inaccessible Container(s), the date and time of the incident, an explanation 

of the potential for surcharges for future incidents, including whether 

Customer will be responsible for a surcharge for the next incident and its 

amount, and include a time-stamped photograph of the inaccessible 

Container(s).  The Town shall receive a copy of all notices.   

 

B. Surcharges.  After Contractor has provided three notices 

identified in subsection A to a Commercial Customer, Contractor may 

impose a surcharge in an amount not to exceed $75.00 for the next 

incident of inaccessible Container(s) for such Customer.  For each 

additional incident of inaccessible Container(s) in a twelve (12) month 

period calculated from the date of the initial incident subject to a 

surcharge, the Contractor may increase the surcharge by $75.00 for each 

incident in that twelve-month period (e.g. $150.00 for the second incident, 

$225.00 for third incident, etc.).  The surcharge amount shall be reduced to 

a maximum of $75 upon the expiration of the initial twelve-month period.  

However, Contractor shall not be required to provide the three initial 

notices identified in subsection A to such Customer.  Rather, Contractor 

may simply impose a surcharge for the next incident and increase such 

surcharge for future incidents in the following twelve-month period as set 

forth above.  All surcharges shall be imposed with notice to the Customer.  

Such notice shall include all information included in notices subject to 

subsection A.  Such notice shall also include the amount of the surcharge 



Staff Report First Amendment to Waste Hauling Franchise Agreement   Page 3 of 3 

and an explanation of the process and amounts of surcharges for future 

incidents.  The Town shall receive a copy of all surcharge notices.  

Notwithstanding Article 7 or any other provision of the Agreement, the 

maximum number of surcharges authorized by this subsection shall not be 

raised or increased by Contractor without the Town’s written consent, 

which may be granted, withheld or conditions in its sole discretion. 

 

ALTERNATIVE 

The City Council could not approve the amendment an ask Republic to continue negotiating 
with business owners to make the needed changes to provide access to their garbage 
containment areas. This is not advised as staff has witnessed over the last few years Republic 
has constantly made the effort to work with the businesses to correct these situations. Having a 
surcharge in place for businesses that exhibit a pattern of not caring to correct the situation will 
hopefully help alleviate the issue.  

CITY COUNCIL VALUES 

The proposed Amendment to the Solid Waste Franchise is Fair as it requires the Town’s Waste 
Hauler to continue to work with and communicate with the business owners who routinely block 
garbage containment areas, but also allows the waste hauler to recover costs for costs 
associated with missed pickups.   

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that City Council by way of a Resolution approve the First Amendment to 
Allied Waste Services of North America, LLC, (DBA Republic Services of Daly City) Franchise 
Agreement.  

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution 

B. Draft of First Amendment  

 

  

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Res 2019-__- First Amendment to Waste Hauling Franchise Agreement Page 1 of 2  

25977.00100\32491582.1  

RESOLUTION 2019-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING FIRST AMENDMENT TO ALLIED WASTE SERVICES OF 
NORTH AMERICA, LLC (DBA REPUBLIC SERVICES OF DALY CITY) FRANCHISE 

AGREEMENT  

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background and Findings.

(a) After a thorough competitive process, in August of 2016, the Town entered into a
franchise agreement with Allied Waste Services of North America, LLC (“Republic Services”) for 
recyclables, organic waste, and garbage collection and processing services within the Town 
(“Franchise Agreement”). 

(b) Recently, it has come to both Town staff’s attention along with the Republic Services’ 
attention that certain business owners in the Town are habitually blocking or preventing 
Republic from completing their scheduled pick up services.   

(c) In order to ensure that Republic Services has physical access to the containers for pick 
up, the Town is now recommending that the City Council amend the Franchise Agreement to 
allow Republic Services to impose surcharges on businesses after three written notices. 

2. Order.

(a) The First Amendment to the Franchise Agreement with Republic Services, a copy of
which is on file with the City Clerk, is hereby approved. 

(b) The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the First Amendment to the Franchise 
Agreement with Republic Services, with any minor non-technical changes deemed necessary by 
the City Attorney and City Manager. 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

Attachment A



 

Res 2019-__- First Amendment to Waste Hauling Franchise Agreement Page 2 of 2   

25977.00100\32491582.1  

* * * * * * 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2019-__was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on November 13, 2019 by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor      

John Irish Goodwin      

Diana Colvin       

Helen Fisicaro      

Raquel Gonzalez      

Voting Tally      

 

 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 

 



1 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (“Amendment”), 

for reference purposes dated ________day of ________________, 2019, is made and 

entered into by and between the Town of Colma, (“Town”), and Allied Waste Services of 

North America, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, doing business as Republic 

Services of Daly City (“Contractor”).   

WHEREAS, Town and Contractor entered into that Franchise Agreement 

between for Recyclables, Organic Waste and Garbage Collection and Processing Services 

between the Town of Colma and Allied Waste Services of North America, LLC dated 

August 30, 2016 (“Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, Section 12.19 of the Agreement provides that any amendment of the 

Agreement must be in a writing executed by the parties; and 

WHEREAS, Town and Contractor desire to amend the Agreement to permit 

Contractor to impose surcharges on commercial customers when Contractor is unable to 

access the container used by such customers on the terms and conditions set forth below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 

the parties agree as follows: 

1. Subsection 3.12.10 is hereby added to the Agreement to read in full as set forth

below: 

“3.12.10 Surcharge for Inaccessible Containers 

A. Initial Notices.  Commercial Customers shall ensure that 

Contractor has access to the Container(s) serving such Customer 

for Collection on the Collection date.  In the event a Commercial 

Customer has not allowed Contractor access to their Solid Waste, 

Organic Waste or Recycling Container for Collection due to the 

Collection area being blocked by Customer or other similar reason, 

the Contractor shall provide notice to such Customer.  Such notice 

shall explain the reason for the inaccessible Container(s), the date 

and time of the incident, an explanation of the potential for 

surcharges for future incidents, including whether Customer will 

be responsible for a surcharge for the next incident and its amount, 

and include a time-stamped photograph of the inaccessible 

Container(s).  The Town shall receive a copy of all notices.   

B. Surcharges.  After Contractor has provided three notices 

identified in subsection A to a Commercial Customer, Contractor 

may impose a surcharge in an amount not to exceed $75.00 for the 

Attachment B



  

 2 

next incident of inaccessible Container(s) for such Customer.  For 

each additional incident of inaccessible Container(s) in a twelve 

(12) month period calculated from the date of the initial incident 

subject to a surcharge, the Contractor may increase the surcharge 

by $75.00 for each incident in that twelve-month period (e.g. 

$150.00 for the second incident, $225.00 for third incident, etc.).  

The surcharge amount shall be reduced to a maximum of $75 upon 

the expiration of the initial twelve-month period.  However, 

Contractor shall not be required to provide the three initial notices 

identified in subsection A to such Customer.  Rather, Contractor 

may simply impose a surcharge for the next incident and increase 

such surcharge for future incidents in the following twelve-month 

period as set forth above.  All surcharges shall be imposed with 

notice to the Customer.  Such notice shall include all information 

included in notices subject to subsection A.  Such notice shall also 

include the amount of the surcharge and an explanation of the 

process and amounts of surcharges for future incidents.  The Town 

shall receive a copy of all surcharge notices.  Notwithstanding 

Article 7 or any other provision of the Agreement, the maximum 

number of surcharges authorized by this subsection shall not be 

raised or increased by Contractor without the Town’s written 

consent, which may be granted, withheld or conditions in its sole 

discretion. 

 

2. Town and Contractor agree and acknowledge that except as explicitly modified 

by this Amendment, the Agreement remains in full force and effect.  All capitalized terms 

in this Amendment shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the Agreement unless 

otherwise noted. 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]



  

 3 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we, the authorized agents of the contracting parties, by our 

duly authorized agents, do hereby affix our signatures and seals this ____day of 

______________, 2019. 

 

TOWN OF COLMA ALLIED WASTE SERVICES OF NORTH 

AMERICA, LLC  

 

 

By: ________________________  By: _________________________ 

         

Printed      Printed 

Name: ______________________  Name: _______________________ 

 

 

Its: _________________________  Its: _________________________ 

 

 

 

By: ________________________   

         

Printed      

Name: ______________________  

 

 

Its: _________________________ 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  


	11.13.19 Regular Meeting Agenda
	1. Minutes - Regular Meeting 10.23.19
	2. Report of Checks Paid - October
	3. SMCMVCDB Trustee Appointment
	A. Resolution - SMCMVCD Trustee Appointment - Walsh
	B. Letter to SMCMVCD
	C. Candidate Application

	4. Third Amendment to Comcast Agreement
	A. Resolution - Comcast Five Year Extension 2019
	B. Third Amendment to Comcast Agreement

	5. Republic Services Waste Hauling Franchise Agreement Amendment
	A. Resolution - First Amendment to Franchise Agreement
	B. First Amendment to Franchise Agreement


